
 

 1

POCONO TOWNSHIP BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MEETING AGENDA 

February 8, 2016 
6:00 P.M. 

 
 

1) Pledge of Allegiance 
2) Roll Call 
3) Reorganization 

a. Election of Officers 
i. President 

ii. Vice President 
4) Approval of Minutes 

a. Commissioners regular meeting, December 21, 2015 
b. Commissioners special meeting, December 31, 2015 
c. Commissioners regular meeting, January 4, 2016 
d. Commissioners special meeting, January 7, 2016 

5) Approval of Bills and Transfers 
6) Public Comment 
7) Northridge Escrow Release 
8) SR 611 Sanitary Sewer Project – Payment Application #1 
9) Appointment of Fire Police 
10) Solicitor 

a. Authorizing the Solicitor to represent the Township in appeals from the Zoning 
Hearing Board decisions related to short-term rentals. 

11) Resolutions  
a. A resolution authorizing submission of an Application for Traffic Signal Approval 
b. A resolution establishing the 2016 meeting schedule 
c. A resolution changing signatories on bank accounts 
d. A resolution reappointing Ron Swink to the Planning Commission 
e. A resolution reappointing Dennis Purcell to the Planning Commission 
f. A resolution reappointing Robert DeYoung to the Planning Commission 
g. A resolution reappointing Steve Chaladoff to the Zoning Hearing Board 
h. A resolution reappointing Lew Ginsberg to the Zoning Hearing Board 
i. A resolution reappointing Rolland Cheesman to the Civil Service Commission 
j. A resolution reappointing Denise Herbert to the Recreation Committee 

12) Process to appoint Vacancy Board Chairman 
13) Executive Session (If Necessary)  
14) Adjournment  

 
 
 
Next Regular meeting – February 16, 2016 (7:00 p.m.)  Next Resolution Number: 2016-01 
         Next Ordinance Number: 2016-01 



POCONO TOWNSHIP BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REGULAR MEETING 

DECEMBER 21st 2015 7:00 P.M. 
 

The regular meeting of the Pocono Township Commissioners was held on 
12/21/2015 at the Pocono Township Municipal Building, Tannersville, PA, 
and was opened by President Richard Wielebinski at 7:00 p.m. followed by 
the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
ROLL CALL: Rich Wielebinski, present; Jerry Lastowski, present; Tom 
Felver, present; Peter Nish, present; and Brad Wise, present. 
 
Leo V. DeVito, Broughal & DeVito LLP, Twp. Solicitor; Tim Edinger, Twp. 
Engineer; Gregg Schuster, Twp. Manager; Pamela Finkbeiner, Twp. Secretary; 
and Regina Zuvich, Twp. Treasure, were present. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: None 
 
MINUTES: 
J. Lastowski made a motion, seconded by P. Nish, to approve the 
Commissioners regular meeting minutes of 12/07/2015. Roll call vote: R. 
Wielebinski, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; T. Felver, yes; P. Nish, yes; and B. 
Wise, yes. Motion carried. 
 
T. Felver made a motion, seconded by R. Wielebinski, to approve the 
Commissioners Special meeting minutes of 12/17/2015. Roll call vote: R. 
Wielebinski, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; T. Felver, yes; P. Nish, yes; and B. 
Wise, yes. Motion carried. 
 
BILLS AND TRANSFERS:  
T. Felver made a motion, seconded by J. Lastowski, to approve the Bill’s 
listing dated 12/21/2015. Roll call vote: R. Wielebinski, yes; J. 
Lastowski, yes; T. Felver, yes; P. Nish, yes; and B. Wise, yes. Motion 
carried. 
 
AMENDMENTS TO AGENDA: None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Judi Coover, Twp. resident, presented a plaque to the 
Board of Commissioners thanking them for their service as the First 1st 
Class Commissioners. 
Jane Cilurso, Twp. resident, thanked the outgoing Board of Commissioner’s 
members for their service. 
 
Ray Midlam representative for St. Luke’s EMS requested the Board delay 
their ambulance service selection for six (6) months. He noted they are 
working with Central Pocono Ambulance to resolve the Board’s concerns. St. 
Luke’s has taken over the financial management, offered employment to CPA 
employees and will require no funding from the Township.  
 
REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT: R. Wielebinski thanked the County Judges for 
appointing the Board. He thanked the board members, Solicitor, Engineers, 
and staff for their hard work and dedication.  



POCONO TOWNSHIP COMMISSIONERS’ REGULAR MEETING, 12/21/2015         PG. 2 
COMMISSIONERS COMMENTS: 
Jerry Lastowski, Commissioner, thanked the outgoing members for their 
dedication to the Township.  
J. Lastowski noted his homeowner insurance was reduced due to the new ISO 
rating of the Fire Company. He suggested everyone submit the ISO letter to 
their carrier.  
 
Tom Felver, Commissioner, noted it was a pleasure to serve with Rich 
Wielebinski, Brad Wise, and Peter Nish. 
 
Peter Nish, Commissioner, suggested the Fire Company place an ad 
concerning the new ISO rating so residents can take advantage of any 
reductions.  
P. Nish thanked the other Board members that choose him to fill out the 
term left by Greg Hill’s resignation. He thanked the audience whom 
regularly attended the meetings for their support. 
 
Brad Wise, Commissioner, noted he appreciated working with everyone and 
noted the improvement the Board had made in closing out the sewer 
contracts and the hump repair. He thanked the Engineers, Solicitor and 
staff for their work and the public for their support.  
 
REPORTS: 
EMERGENCY SERVICES: No reports 
 
ADMINISTRATION: 
Township Manager Gregg Schuster reviewed his report. He noted a recent 
meeting with Northampton Community College concerning future recreation 
opportunities. 
 
Ambulance RFP – G. Schuster noted the Township has received new 
information.  
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by J. Lastowski, to appoint Monroe 
County Emergency Services (Suburban) as the primary responder for Pocono 
Township. P. Nish noted CPA has served the community for 50 years and he 
felt strongly that they should allow them the requested time. J. Lastowski 
spoke concerning the new Pocono Medical Center to be located in the 
Township bringing jobs and taxes. R. Wielebinski spoke on the process to 
select a service. L. DeVito noted the new Board may rescind any decision. 
Roll call vote: R. Wielebinski, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; T. Felver, yes; P. 
Nish, no; and B. Wise, no. Motion carried. 
 
2765 SR 611 – Dangerous Structures – Rick Fisher, Township Zoning officer 
request for a building code inspector to visit the homes located on the 
Kopelson Property on the corner of Rt. 611 and Rt. 715. G. Schuster noted 
under the dangerous structure ordinance a Building Code official will need 
to do a visual inspection from the roadway. R. Wielebinski made a motion, 
seconded by P. Nish, to authorize the Twp. Building Code official to do an 
drive-by inspection of the buildings on a property located at 2765 SR 611 
and start the process to demolish the structures. Roll call vote: R. 
Wielebinski, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; T. Felver, yes; P. Nish, yes; and B. 
Wise, yes. Motion carried. 
 
 



POCONO TOWNSHIP COMMISSIONERS’ REGULAR MEETING, 12/21/2015         PG. 3 
 
PRESENTATIONS: 
Township Engineer Tim Edinger -  
Tanalo Estates – Resolution 2014-13 – Planning Commission at their 
11/23/2015 meeting, recommended the Tanalo Estates Final plan be deemed 
null and void if all the conditions of the Resolution are not completed by 
12/21/2015. T. Edinger explained the Developer has failed to meet the 
condition of Resolution 2014-13, dated 04/07/2014 granting conditional 
approval of the Tanalo Estates Final Major Subdivision. T. Edinger noted a 
letter was sent out to the developer to note the action the P.C. 
recommending to the Board of Commissioners. R. Wielebinski made a motion, 
seconded by B. Wise, to deem Resolution 2014-13 – Tanalo Estates Major 
Subdivision – null and void. Roll call vote: R. Wielebinski, yes; J. 
Lastowski, yes; T. Felver, yes; P. Nish, yes; and B. Wise, yes. Motion 
carried. 
 
Camelback Snowtubing Parking Lot expansion – Request of release of 
remaining security – T. Edinger noted he is recommending the release of 
the remaining balance of $3,462.30 as of 11/30/2015. 
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by J. Lastowski, to approve the 
Camelback Snowtubing Parking Lot Expansion remaining security. Roll call 
vote: R. Wielebinski, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; T. Felver, yes; P. Nish, 
yes; and B. Wise, yes. Motion carried. 
 
Township Solicitor Leo DeVito – 
Agreement with Tobyhanna Township – L. DeVito explained the agreement with 
Tobyhanna Township/Kalahari allowed the sewerline to tap into recently 
approved an extension to 06/01/2016. B. Wise made a motion, seconded by R. 
Wielebinski, to allow an amendment to be drafted to the 
Pocono/Tobyhanna/Kalahari Inter-governmental Agreement to allow Kalahari 
to disconnect from Pump Station No. 1 and by-pass the PS1 by June 1st, 
2016. T. Felver questioned if Kalahari was paying for the maintenance of 
PS#1. Discussion followed. Roll call vote: R. Wielebinski, yes; J. 
Lastowski, yes; T. Felver, yes; P. Nish, yes; and B. Wise, yes. Motion 
carried. 
 
Leo DeVito thanked the Board of Commissioners for their work in creating a 
First Class Township.  
 
Township Treasurer Gina Zuvich gave her report. She noted the Township is 
over in revenue for the Budget. In revenue expenses are high for Police 
overtime. Discussion followed on expenses. She noted the Township has not 
received invoices for the Sewer repair.  
B. Wise thanked G. Zuvich, G. Schuster, and P. Finkbeiner for their work 
on the Township’s accounting records.  
 
RESOLUTIONS: 
Rescinding of Resolutions 2015-72, 2015-73, 2015-78, 2015-79, 2015-80, and 
2015-81. G. Schuster explained the resolutions for reappointments were 
invalid.  R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by T. Felver, to rescind 
Resolutions 2015-72,2015-73, 2015-78, 2015-79, 2015-80, and 2015-81. Roll 
call vote: R. Wielebinski, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; T. Felver, yes; P. 
Nish, yes; and B. Wise, yes. Motion carried. 



POCONO TOWNSHIP COMMISSIONERS REGULAR MEETING 12/21/2015         PG. 4 
RESOLUTIONS CONT. 
Resolution 2015–87 - 2016 Insurance renewals – G. Schuster requested 
guidance from the Board on the total pollution coverage. Discussion 
followed. B. Wise made a motion, seconded by J. Lastowski to adopt 
Resolution 2015-87 – 2016 Insurance renewals. Roll call vote: R. 
Wielebinski, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; T. Felver, yes; P. Nish, yes; and B. 
Wise, no. Motion carried. 
 
Resolution 2015-88 - MOUs with Police Union and Public Works Union – G. 
Schuster explained there is no cost to the Township. Discussion followed 
as to non-union employees. R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by J. 
Lastowski, to adopt Resolution 2015-88 – MOUs with Police Union and Public 
Work Union and non-union employees. Roll call vote: R. Wielebinski, yes; 
J. Lastowski, yes; T. Felver, yes; P. Nish, yes; and B. Wise, yes. Motion 
carried. 
 
Resolution 2015-89 Supplemental Appropriations  
Roll call vote: R. Wielebinski, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; T. Felver, yes; P. 
Nish, yes; and B. Wise, yes. Motion carried. 
 
Resolution 2015-90  Capital Improvement Plan – G. Schuster thanked Jeff 
Clapper, Public Works Director and the Capital Improvement Board for their 
work developing the plan. J. Lastowski made a motion, seconded by P. Nish, 
to adopt Resolution 2015-90 – Capital Improvement Plan. Roll call vote: R. 
Wielebinski, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; T. Felver, yes; P. Nish, yes; and B. 
Wise, yes. Motion carried. 
 
Resolution 2015-91  Capital Reserve Fund – R. Wielebinski made a motion, 
seconded by J. Lastowski, to adopt Resolution 2015-91 – Capital Reserve 
Fund. Roll call vote: R. Wielebinski, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; T. Felver, 
yes; P. Nish, yes; and B. Wise, yes. Motion carried. 
 
Resolution 2015-92 eliminating the Debt Service Fund – R. Wielebinski made 
a motion, seconded by P. Nish, to adopt Resolution 2015-93 eliminating the 
Debt Service Fund. 
Roll call vote: R. Wielebinski, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; T. Felver, yes; P. 
Nish, yes; and B. Wise, yes. Motion carried. 
 
Resolution 2015-93 eliminating the Emergency Services Fund – R. 
Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by T. Felver, to adopt Resolution 
2015-93 eliminating the Emergency Services Fund. 
Roll call vote: R. Wielebinski, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; T. Felver, yes; P. 
Nish, yes; and B. Wise, yes. Motion carried. 
 
Resolution 2015-94 eliminating the Parks and Recreation Fund – R. 
Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by J. Lastowski, to adopt Resolution 
2015-94 eliminating the Parks and Recreation Fund. 
Roll call vote: R. Wielebinski, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; T. Felver, yes; P. 
Nish, yes; and B. Wise, yes. Motion carried. 
 
 



POCONO TOWNSHIP COMMISSIONERS REGULAR MEETING 12/21/2015         PG. 5 
RESOLUTIONS CONT. 
 
Resolution 2015-95 2016 Budget – T. Felver questioned the expenditures. B. 
Wise questioned reduction in the mil rate.  R. Wielebinski made a motion, 
seconded by J. Lastowski, to adopt Resolution 2015-95 – 2016 Budget as 
presented. Roll call vote: R. Wielebinski, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; T. 
Felver, yes; P. Nish, yes; and B. Wise, no. Motion carried. 
 
Resolution 2015-96 2016 Property Tax Rate – G. Schuster noted the mils 
have been reduced by 1.25. R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by J. 
Lastowski to approve Resolution 2015-96 – 2016 Property Tax Rate.  
Roll call vote: R. Wielebinski, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; T. Felver, yes; P. 
Nish, yes; and B. Wise, no. Motion carried. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: None 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by P. Nish, to adjourn the meeting 
at 8:35 p.m., until the reorganizational meeting on 01/04/2016 at the 
Pocono Township Municipal Building, Tannersville, PA. Roll call vote: R. 
Wielebinski, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; T. Felver, yes; P. Nish, yes; and B. 
Wise, yes. Motion carried. 



POCONO TOWNSHIP BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
SPECIAL MEETING 

DECEMBER 31st, 2015 8:00 A.M. 
 

The special meeting of the Pocono Township Commissioners was held on 
12/31/2015 at the Pocono Township Municipal Building, Tannersville, PA, 
and was opened by President Richard Wielebinski at 8:00 a.m. followed by 
the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
ROLL CALL: Rich Wielebinski, present; Jerry Lastowski, present; Tom 
Felver, present; Peter Nish, absent; and Brad Wise, absent. 
 
Leo V. DeVito, Broughal & DeVito LLP, Twp. Solicitor; Gregg Schuster, Twp. 
Manager were present. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: None 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  
 
Monica Gerrity commented on the amendments to the contract and questioned 
responses from other services. 
 
Barry Albertson (Suburban EMS) stated that the closest unit would respond 
if all of Suburban units were unavailable. 
 
Monica Gerrity discussed response times, locations, and the potential of 
PMC building a hospital. 
 
Adam Muzak (St. Luke’s) clarified mutual aid protocol. 
 
Diane Zweifel questioned where patients will be transported.  
 
Barry Albertson stated patients will be transported to the closest 
appropriate facility. 
 
Angela Tullio commented on the selection process and communication. 
 
Ramona Shupp commented on a potential recusal of Commissioner Wielebinski. 
 
Vincent Trapasso commented on the length of the process. 
 
Dawn Larenzis commented on PMC building a hospital. 
 
Monica Gerrity questioned how the contract was developed and commented on 
transparency.  
 
Diane Zweifel commented on an antenna at the Weis strip mall. 
 
Attorney Joe Bouba, representing St. Luke’s, commented on the lame duck 
status of the Board and the potential overturning of the agreement. 
 



Attorney Marc Wolfe, representing Pocono Medical Center, commented that he 
believes the contract would survive a challenge.  
 
Monica Gerrity commented that she would like the closest ambulance to 
respond. 
 
Angela Tullio commented on the status of Central Pocono Ambulance and that 
they are not closing. Solicitor DeVito responded that any closure of 
Central Pocono Ambulance was not a factor. 
 
Joel Coover asked for the benefits of having a contract. 
 
Heidi Picard spoke in favor of a contract and listed benefits. 
 
Linda Smith commented on agreements and mutual aid. 
 
Diane Zweifel commented on the potential recusal of Commissioner 
Wielebinski. 
 
Jake Singer spoke in favor of Central Pocono Ambulance. 
 
Senator Mario Scavello commented on legal information he had forwarded. 
 
Commissioner-elect Judi Coover commented on an offer from her and 
Commissioner-elect Harold Werkheiser to not challenge the designation 
under certain conditions. 
 
Vincent Trapasso thanked the Commissioners for the time they spent on 
this. 
 
Jack Swersie commented on the perception of the process. 
 
Charlie Trapasso thanked Pocono Medical Center for investing in the 
community. 
 
Diane Zweifel commented on the proposal from the Commissioners-elect. 
 
 
RESOLUTIONS: 
Resolution 2015-97 – Approving an agreement for emergency medical 
services. 
 
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by T. Felver, to adopt Resolution 
2015-97 approving an agreement for EMS services. Roll call vote: R. 
Wielebinski, yes; J. Lastowski, yes; and T. Felver, yes. Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
Annabella Lastowski commented on others speaking on behalf of 
Commissioner-elect Werkheiser. 
 



Steve Cunningham (Pocono Medical Center) stated that they look forward to 
providing EMS services and that the planned hospital will include a level 
2 trauma center. 
 
Ramona Shupp stated that she will not use Suburban. 
 
Carol Smith spoke in favor of Central Pocono Ambulance. 
 
Commissioner-elect Judi Coover stated that she had permission from 
Commissioner-elect Harold Werkheiser to speak on his behalf. 
 
Dawn Doneras commented that the Board didn’t listen to the people. 
 
 
ADJOURMENT: 
R. Wielebinski made a motion, seconded by J. Lastowski, to adjourn the 
meeting at 9:09 a,m. Roll call vote: R. Wielebinski, yes; J. Lastowski, 
yes; and T. Felver, yes. Motion carried. 



POCONO TOWNSHIP BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 

JANUARY 4th, 2016 7:00 P.M. 
 

The reorganizational meeting of the Pocono Township Commissioners was held 
on 01/04/2016 at the Pocono Township Municipal Building, Tannersville, PA, 
and was opened by Gregg Schuster, Township Manager, at 7:00 p.m. followed 
by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
ROLL CALL: Tom Felver, present; Harold Werkheiser, present; Jerry 
Lastowski, present; and Judi Coover, present. 
 
Leo V. DeVito, Broughal & DeVito LLP, Twp. Solicitor; Mark Ambrose, Twp. 
engineer; Gregg Schuster, Twp. Manager; and Pamela Finkbeiner, Twp. 
Secretary; were present. 
 
Gregg Schuster, Township Manager, explained the process of selecting the 
position of President and opened the floor to nominations.  
 
PRESIDENT: H. Werkheiser made a motion, seconded by J. Coover, to nominate       
J. Coover as Pocono Township Board of Commissioner’s President. 
 
J. Coover made a motion, seconded by H. Werkheiser, to nominate H. 
Werkheiser as Pocono Township Board of Commissioner President. 
 
T. Felver made a motion, seconded by J. Lastowski, to nominate J. 
Lastowski as Pocono Township Board of Commissioner President. 
 
J. Lastowski made a motion, seconded by T. Felver, to nominate T. Felver 
as Pocono Township Board of Commissioner President. 
 
G. Schuster ordered the vote: 
T. Felver voted for J. Lastowski, H. Werkheiser voted for J. Coover; J. 

Lastowski voted for J. Lastowski; J. Coover voted for J. Coover.  
G. Schuster noted a tie vote and opened the floor for nominations. 
J. Lastowski made a motion, seconded by T. Felver, to nominate T. Felver 
as Pocono Township Board of Commissioner President. 
 
J. Coover made a motion, seconded by H. Werkheiser, to nominate H. 
Werkheiser as Pocono Township Board of Commissioner President. 
 
T. Felver made a motion, seconded by J. Lastowski, to nominate J. 
Lastowski as Pocono Township Board of Commissioner President. 
 
H. Werkheiser made a motion, seconded by J. Coover, to nominate J. Coover 
as Pocono Township Board of Commissioner’s President. 
 
G. Schuster ordered the vote: T. Felver voted J. Lastowski; H. Werkheiser 
voted J. Coover; J. Lastowski voted J. Lastowski; and J. Coover voted J. 
Coover. Tie vote.  
 
 



POCONO TOWNSHIP COMMISSIONERS REORGANIZATIONAL MEETING, 01/04/2016   PG.2 
PRESIDENT CONT: 
L. DeVito, Solicitor, explained if the board should fail to organize in 10 
days the Courts would declare the Commissioner seats vacant and the court 
would appoint a new board.  
 
G. Schuster noted the options: 
1) The Board could adjourn the meeting, appoint additional board member, 
and then hold the reorganizational meeting within 10 days.  
2) Appoint one person now whom will agree to step down once the fifth 
member is chosen and a new president would be selected. J. Lastowski and 
T. Felver agreed to step down if chosen. 
3) Recess to allow the members, two at a time to speak to each other. 
 
T. Felver question if the Township could conduct business without 
appointing a president. L. DeVito noted the Township cannot conduct 
business until a President is chosen. 
The Board recessed at 7:15 p.m. and returned at 7:35 p.m.  
G. Schuster reconvened the meeting. The Board concurred they could not 
resolve the impasse.  
 
The Board agreed to a special meeting, 01/07/2016 at 7:00 p.m. to resolve 
the determination of President.  
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
T. Felver made a motion, seconded by J. Coover, to adjourn the meeting at 
7:45 p.m. until 01/07/2016 at 7:00 p.m. at the Pocono Township Municipal 
Building. All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
 



POCONO TOWNSHIP BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
REORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 

JANUARY 7th, 2016 7:00 P.M. 
The reorganizational meeting of the Pocono Township Commissioners was held 
on 01/07/2016 at the Pocono Township Municipal Building, Tannersville, PA, 
and was opened by Gregg Schuster, Township Manager, at 7:00 p.m. followed 
by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
ROLL CALL: Tom Felver, present; Harold Werkheiser, present; Jerry 
Lastowski, present; and Judi Coover, present. 
 
Leo V. DeVito, Broughal & DeVito LLP, Twp. Solicitor; Russ Benner, T&M 
Associates, Twp. engineer; Gregg Schuster, Twp. Manager; and Pamela 
Finkbeiner, Twp. Secretary; were present. 
 
Gregg Schuster, Township Manager, explained the election of officers. L. 
DeVito noted three members will be required to approve a nomination for 
President. G. Schuster opened the floor to nominations.  
 
PRESIDENT:  
T. Felver made a motion, seconded by J. Lastowski, to nominate J. 
Lastowski as Pocono Township Board of Commissioner President. 
 
H. Werkheiser made a motion, seconded by J. Coover, to nominate J. Coover 
as Pocono Township Board of Commissioner’s President. 
 
J. Lastowski made a motion, seconded by T. Felver, to nominate T. Felver 
as Pocono Township Board of Commissioner President. 
 
J. Coover made a motion, seconded by H. Werkheiser, to nominate H. 
Werkheiser as Pocono Township Board of Commissioner President. 
 
G. Schuster ordered the vote by raise of hands. 
H. Werkheiser and J. Coover voted for J. Coover for President. 
T. Felver and J. Lastowski voted for J. Lastowski for President.  
G. Schuster noted a tie vote with 2 votes for Judi Coover and 2 votes for 
Jerry Lastowski.  
 
L. DeVito explained if the Board fails to organize before 10 days from the 
first Monday of the New Year or January 14th; ten registered voters can 
file a petition with the Monroe County Court of Common Pleas.  
 
L. DeVito noted the Township cannot conduct business until it reorganizes. 
T. Felver questioned if payroll can be paid. Discussion followed.   
T. Felver suggested the Solicitor and Township Manager move forward to 
conduct Township business by contacting the Courts. L. DeVito noted he 
cannot proceed without the reorganization of the Board.  
G. Schuster recommended the Board recess to discuss the matter. 
G. Schuster declared a ten minute recess at 7:10 p.m. 
The Board reconvened at 7:22 p.m. 
 



POCONO TOWNSHIP BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS’ REORGANIZATION MEETING, 01/07/2016 
PG. 2 – PRESIDENT CONT: 
 
The Board concurred the impasse could not be resolved.  
 
G. Schuster noted the Board’s options: 1) to have another recess; 2) 
schedule another meeting; or 3) adjourn and have the Courts intervene. 
 
Discussion followed for another meeting.  
T. Felver noted he will be unavailable due to hospital stay next week and 
recommended adjourning the meeting. 
 
J. Coover questioned if T. Felver would be available by speaker phone. 
G. Schuster noted the Board can adjourn the meeting and meet on the 
regular meeting the 19th. T. Felver stated he may be unavailable due to his 
health.  
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
T. Felver made a motion, seconded by J. Lastowski, to adjourn the meeting 
at 7:25 p.m. Roll call vote: T. Felver, yes; H. Werkheiser, no; J. 
Lastowski, yes; and J. Coover, no. Motion failed due to tie. 
 
G. Schuster declared a ten minute recess at 7:30 p.m.  
 
The Board reconvened at 8:05 p.m. The Board concurred they could not 
resolve the impasse.  
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
T. Felver made a motion, seconded by J. Lastowski, to adjourn the meeting 
at 8:15 p.m. Roll call vote: T. Felver, yes; H. Werkheiser, no; J. 
Lastowski, yes; and J. Coover, no. Motion failed due to tie. 
 
J. Coover requested another meeting. No action taken. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
J. Lastowski made a motion, seconded by T. Felver, to adjourn the meeting 
at 8:20 p.m. Roll call vote: T. Felver, yes; H. Werkheiser, yes; J. 
Lastowski, yes; and J. Coover, yes. Motion carried. 
 
 
 
 
 



Pocono Township Check Listing

January 4, 2016

Date Check Vendor Memo Amount

General Fund 2015

12/29/2015 54032 Nationwide 457 plan December voluntary pension plan 4,968.62

12/29/2015 54033 Nationwide 457 plan End of year township contractual contribution 5,624.59

12/30/2015 54069 Carol Otto Cleaning services 550.00

12/30/2015 54064 Verizon Wireless Phones 241.41

TOTAL General Fund $11,384.62

General Fund 2016

12/29/2015 54035 AFLAC Voluntary supplemental disability 396.08

12/30/2015 54067 PNC Equipment Finance, LLC Roger's Trailer 1,872.57

12/30/2015 54054 PMHIC Health Insurance 64,857.62

TOTAL General Fund $67,126.27

TOTAL General Fund $78,510.89

TOTAL ESSA Transfer $78,510.89

Transferred by:

Authorized by:



Pocono Township Check Listing 

 January 4, 2016

Date Check Vendor Memo Amount

General Fund

2015 01/04/2016 54034 Met Life Township non uniform pension 5,209.32

01/04/2016 54036 Lincoln Life December voluntary pension plan 300.00

01/04/2016 54041 D.G. Nicholas Co. Parts 690.66

01/04/2016 54042 Dailey Resources, LTD Electrode Holder 19.75

01/04/2016 54043 DES Recycling 20.00

01/04/2016 54044 Dynamite Car Wash Police Car washes 188.50

01/04/2016 54045 E.M.Kutz, Inc. Motor and spin disks 781.62

01/04/2016 54046 Eureka Stone Quarry, Inc. Stone 2,109.07

01/04/2016 54047 Howarth, Carl Coffee 99.00

01/04/2016 54048 J & B Auto Police Vehicle Repair 621.56

01/04/2016 54049 Medico Industries, Inc. Part 12.45

01/04/2016 54051 NMS Labs Blood Test 75.00

01/04/2016 54052 P & D Emergency Services #93 102.00

01/04/2016 54053 PAPCO, Inc. Gasoline 1,049.34

01/04/2016 54055 Pocono Peterbilt Truck Parts 1,595.77

01/04/2016 54058 Royal Security Services, Inc Security System 2,179.85

01/04/2016 54059 Staples Advantage Office Supplies 273.44

01/04/2016 54060 Staples Credit Plan Office Supplies 669.83

01/04/2016 54061 Steele's Hardware Supplies 57.18

01/04/2016 54062 Stiff Oil Company Heating Oil 565.44

01/04/2016 54063 UNIFIRST Corporation Carpets/Uniforms 313.82

01/04/2016 54066 Weitzmann, Weitzmann & Huffman, LLC ZHB 1,764.68

01/04/2016 54068 Weitzmann, Weitzmann & Huffman, LLC ZHB 1,737.44

TOTAL General Fund $20,435.72

General Fund

2016

01/04/2016 54040 APMM Annual Dues 165.00

01/04/2016 54056 PSATS Associate Membership 500.00

01/04/2016 54057 Reserve Account Postage 1,000.00

01/04/2016 54065 Virtual Town Hall Holdings, LLC Website Hosting 2,500.00

01/04/2016 54050 Monroe County Control Center 1st Quarter 20,165.96

TOTAL General Fund $24,330.96

Park Fund

01/04/2016 54037 Cramer's Home Building Center Supplies - New Office 1,632.98

01/04/2016 54039 Steele's Hardware Supplies 118.08

01/04/2016 54038 Friedman Electric Supplies - New Office 67.47

TOTAL Park Fund $1,818.53

Sewer Operating 

Fund

12/30/2015 1482 PPL Electric for pump stations 256.34

12/30/2015 1483 Met Ed Electric for pump station 5 507.23

12/30/2015 1485 Steele's Hardware Generator supplies 19.96

12/30/2015 1484 Blue Ridge Communications Cable for pump station 118.59

TOTAL Sewer Operating Fund $902.12

TOTAL General Fund $44,766.68 .

TOTAL Park Fund $1,818.53 Transferred by:

TOTAL ESSA Transfer $46,585.21

Total Sewer 

Operating Fund Wayne Bank $902.12 Authorized by:

 Page 1 of 1



Pocono Township Check Listing 

 January 20, 2016

Date Check Vendor Memo Amount

General Fund

1/21/2016 54071 Amerihealth Casualty Workmans Comp 34,206.08

1/21/2016 54080 Cardmembers Police Training 665.92

1/21/2016 54072 Cardmembers Software 105.99

1/21/2016 54073 DCED UCC Fees 2015 180.00

1/21/2016 54074 Engle-Hambright & Davies, Inc. Insurance Policies 41,205.00

1/21/2016 54075 Metropolitan Telephones Phone Service 212.25

1/21/2016 54081 Metropolitan Telephones Phone Service 409.58

1/21/2016 54076 MRM Property Property/Liability Ins. 48,472.00

1/21/2016 54077 Otto, Carol Cleaning 550.00

1/21/2016 54078 PNC Equipment case loader 1,014.30

1/21/2016 54079 PPL Electric 1,999.05

TOTAL General Fund $129,020.17

Sewer Operating 

Fund

1/21/2016 1486 EEMA O&M Services Group Valve station repairs 11,413.06

1/21/2016 1486 EEMA O&M Services Group O&M for January 5,350.00

1/21/2016 1487 BCRA For February 85,185.00

TOTAL Sewer Operating Fund $101,948.06

TOTAL General Fund $129,020.17 .

TOTAL ESSA Transfer $129,020.17

Total Sewer 

Operating Fund Wayne Bank $101,948.06 Authorized by:

 Page 1 of 1



Pocono Township Check Listing 

 February 2, 2016

Date Check Vendor Memo Amount

General Fund

2/2/2016 54089 Carol Otto Cleaning 550.00

2/2/2016 54168 Unum 2 Months of disability insurance 4,398.00

2/2/2016 54090 PMHI Health Insurance 64,857.62

2/2/2016 54084 Lincoln Life Voluntary supplemental pension 300.00

2/2/2016 54085 Local Union 773 Union dues 534.00

2/2/2016 54086 Local Union 773 Union dues Police 1,191.00

2/2/2016 54083 AFLAC Voluntary supplemental health ins 396.08

2/2/2016 54082 Nationwide Voluntary supplemental pension 4,960.76

2/2/2016 54087 US Bank Police pension for December 11,026.43

2/2/2016 54088 US Bank Police pension for January 5,020.00

TOTAL General Fund $93,233.89

Sewer Operating 

Fund

2/2/2016 1490 Brennan Electric Pump station maintenance 6,560.00

2/2/2016 1489 Trijay Pump station maintenance 4,400.00

2/2/2016 1488 Evoqua Pump station supplies 5,180.96

TOTAL Sewer Operating Fund $16,140.96

TOTAL General Fund $93,233.89 .

TOTAL ESSA Transfer $93,233.89

Total Sewer 

Operating Fund Wayne Bank $16,140.96 Authorized by:

 Page 1 of 1



Pocono Township Check Listing 

 February 8, 2016

Date Check Vendor Memo Amount

General Fund

2/5/2016 54169 Met Life Non uniform pension 5,418.15

1/19/2016 54070 PNC Bank School payment 8,162.24

02/04/2016 54098 Banks Vacuum New Vaccum 199.99

02/04/2016 54099 Bartonsville Printing Property Receipt Envelopes 112.00

02/04/2016 54102 Brodhead Creek Regional Authority Water - Township Police 194.06

02/04/2016 54104 C & S Brothers, Inc Name plate 25.00

02/04/2016 54105 Cargill Incorporated Salt 9,526.34

02/04/2016 54106 CCP Industries Rags - Public Works 163.44

02/04/2016 54108 Clapper, Jeffry Mileage - Public Works 25.38

02/04/2016 54109 Commonwealth Financing Authority Underground storage tank 825.00

02/04/2016 54110 Cramer's Home Building Center Supplies - Park office 310.86

02/04/2016 54111 Cyphers Truck Parts Truck parts 486.08

02/04/2016 54112 D.G. Nicholas Co. P1540 329.37

02/04/2016 54114 Donna Kenderline Reporting ZHB - ACE 125.00

02/04/2016 54115 E.M.Kutz, Inc. Truck parts 888.74

02/04/2016 54117 Friedman Electric Supplies - Park office 517.66

02/04/2016 54118 Fry's Plastic Culvert Pipe 8,393.38

02/04/2016 54119 Hanson Aggregates Pennsylvania LLC Anti-Skid 5,529.45

02/04/2016 54120 Hartman, Glenn Plow hit mailbox 106.98

02/04/2016 54121 J. P. Mascaro & Sons Garbage 226.80

02/04/2016 54122 Jim's Drywall Supplies, Inc. Park Office 63.00

02/04/2016 54123 JNK Hydrotest & Extinguisher Supply Co. Extinquisher service 39.95

02/04/2016 54124 Keystone Business Products Copier 500.33

02/04/2016 54125 Kimball Midwest Public Works Supplies 176.75

02/04/2016 54128 Leddy Telecom Services Set up call distribution/Police 292.50

02/04/2016 54129 Macmillan Oil Co., Of Allentown Tacky Grease 96.00

02/04/2016 54131 Network Fleet GPS Service 355.40

02/04/2016 54132 ODB Company Sweeper 667.23

02/04/2016 54133 Orion Flares 1,972.80

02/04/2016 54134 Otto, Carol Cleaning - Weeks of 02/15 & 02/23 550.00

02/04/2016 54135 P & D Emergency Services Police Vehicles 174.00

02/04/2016 54136 PAPCO, Inc. Gasoline 2,536.28

02/04/2016 54137 PENTELEDATA Internet 121.90

02/04/2016 54138 Pitney Bowes Postage meter 136.00

02/04/2016 54139 Pocono Peterbilt Truck parts 443.28

02/04/2016 54141 PPL Electric Utilities Electric - Park/Twp/Police/Traffic 3,025.15

02/04/2016 54142 Praxair Dist Mid-Atlantic Supplies 24.14

02/04/2016 54143 RecDesk LLC Park Calendar 1,800.00

02/04/2016 54144 Robert B. Turnbull, Jr. Tree Trimming 2,200.00

02/04/2016 54146 Royal Security Services, Inc Signage 225.00

02/04/2016 54148 Sirchie Fingerprint Laboratories Finberprinting supplies 226.97

02/04/2016 54149 SPW Cleaning Services Floor Cleaning 100.00

02/04/2016 54150 Staples Advantage Office Supplies 309.27

02/04/2016 54151 Staples Credit Plan Office Supplies 281.08

02/04/2016 54152 Stiff Oil Company Heating Oil 1,614.23

02/04/2016 54153 STTC Service Tire Truck Centers, INC. Tires 108.40

02/04/2016 54154 Sundance Networks, Inc. IT service 342.00

02/04/2016 54157 UNIFIRST Corporation Carpets/Uniforms 629.89

02/04/2016 54158 Verizon Wireless Phones Twp 241.86

02/04/2016 54160 Weitzmann, Weitzmann & Huffman, LLC ZHB - Legal 1,909.10

02/04/2016 54161 Wilson Products Compressed Gas Co. Supplies - Public Works 196.43

02/05/2016 54163 Lawson Products Supplies - Public Works 148.82

02/05/2016 54164 Metropolitan Telecommunications Phones - Park/Township 505.93

02/05/2016 54165 PNC Bank, N.A. School Load - February 8,164.24

02/05/2016 54166 PNC Equipment Finance, LLC 2011 Loader - February 1,014.30

02/05/2016 54167 Stiff Oil Company 1,291.56

02/04/2016 54095 Steele's Hardware Park supplies 119.66

02/04/2016 54096 Steele's Hardware Township/Police supplies 237.45

General Fund

2015 02/04/2016 54097 Verizon Wireless Phones - Police 574.63

02/04/2016 54100 Best Auto Service Center Police Vehicels 1,771.64

02/04/2016 54101 BIU of PA, Inc. BIU Services 14,465.23

02/04/2016 54103 Broughal & DeVito, L.L.P. Legal - General & Planning 6,547.50

02/04/2016 54107 Cintas First Aid kits 628.29

02/04/2016 54108 Clapper, Jeffry Mileage - Public Works Director 16.19

02/04/2016 54113 Dailey Resources, LTD Welding rods 68.90

02/04/2016 54116 Eureka Stone Quarry, Inc. 2015  2A stone 300.30

02/04/2016 54126 Kost Tire & Auto Service Police Vehicle Tires 597.47

02/04/2016 54127 Lawrence B. Fox P.C. Civil Service 840.85

02/04/2016 54130 Manter, David SEO Services 615.00

02/04/2016 54135 P & D Emergency Services Police Vehicles 496.30

02/04/2016 54140 Pocono Record Ad for meetings 433.00

02/04/2016 54145 Rottet Motors, Inc. Police car repair 390.44

02/04/2016 54147 Signal Service, Inc. Traffic Signal Repair 200.00

02/04/2016 54142 Praxair Dist Mid-Atlantic Supplies 23.65

02/04/2016 54155 T&M Associates Engineering Fees - General/Planning 7,313.37

 Page 1 of 2



Pocono Township Check Listing 

 February 8, 2016

02/04/2016 54156 Tulpehocken Mountain Spring Water Inc Water 31.50

02/04/2016 54162 Verizon Wireless IPADS 60.86

02/04/2016 54159 Warnick Welding & Fabrication Welding 3,600.00

TOTAL General Fund $113,381.94

Sewer Operating 

Fund

02/05/2016 1491 Frank Romascavage, D.O. Immunizations 1,190.00

02/05/2016 1492 CAGA Group P trap reimbursement 1,000.00

02/05/2016 1493 Cyphers Truck Parts Inv 00641355 11.39

02/05/2016 1494 PPL  Electric Utilities Electric for pump stations 2,489.14

02/05/2016 1495 BLUE RIDGE COMMUNICATIONS Cable for pump stations 308.10

02/05/2016 1496 RKR Hess Engineering for sewer operations 319.41

02/05/2016 1497 MET-ED Electric for pump stations 319.96

02/05/2016 1498 Cramer, Swetz, McManus & Jordan Legal for sewer operations 107.43

02/05/2016 1499 BRODHEAD CREEK REGIONAL AUTHORITY Water 163.56

02/05/2016 1500 J P Mascaro & Sons Garbage collection 61.07

02/05/2016 1501 Dynalene, Inc. Supplies for pump station 350.00

02/05/2016 1502 BROUGHAL & DEVITO, L.L.P. Legal for sewer operations 510.00

02/05/2016 1503 Pennsylvania One Call System, Inc Monthly charge for one call 31.57

02/05/2016 1504 T & M ASSOCIATES Ent 5,870.32

02/05/2016 1505 PENTELEDATA Internet for pump stations 359.70

02/05/2016 1506 METROPOLITAN TELECOMMUNICATIONS Phone for pump stations 100.20

02/05/2016 1507 Steele's Hardware Supplies for sewer 40.01

02/05/2016 1508 Allstate Septic Systems, LLP Sewer maintenance 510.00

TOTAL Sewer Operating Fund $13,741.86

.

Sewer 

Construction 2/5/2016 T&M Associates Engineering for sewer construction 38,926.23

TOTAL Sewer Construction Fund $38,926.23

TOTAL General Fund $113,381.94

$38,926.23

TOTAL ESSA Transfer $152,308.17

Total Sewer 

Operating Fund Wayne Bank $13,741.86 Authorized by:

TOTAL Sewer Construction Fund

 Page 2 of 2











































































TOWNSHIP OF POCONO, MONROE COUNTY, 
PENNSYLVANIA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE 2016 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
MEETING DATES 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners desires to establish meeting dates and 

times for 2016; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ADOPTED AND RESOLVED that unless 

otherwise noticed, the Board of Commissioners shall meet at 7:00 PM at the Municipal 
Building located at 112 Township Drive, Tannersville on the following dates in 2016: 

 
February 16*   August 1 
March 7   August 15   
March 21   September 6*  
April 4    September 19  
April 18   October 3 
May 2    October 17 
May 16   November 7  
June 6    November 21 
June 20   December 5   
July 5*    December 19 
July 18      
      
 

* denotes a meeting moved to a Tuesday due to a holiday 
 

RESOLVED at a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the 
Township of Pocono the 8th day of February, 2016. 
 
 
ATTEST:      Township of Pocono 
       Board of Commissioners 
 
 
By:___________________________   By:___________________________ 
Print Name:   Pamela Finkbeiner   Print Name:   Tom Felver 
Title:  Secretary    Title:  President 



TOWNSHIP OF POCONO, MONROE COUNTY, 
PENNSYLVANIA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 
 

A RESOLUTION CHANGING BANK SIGNATORIES 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners desires to change the people 
authorized to sign financial documents to reflect the recent election; and 

 
WHEREAS, Judi Coover, Thomas Felver, Gerald Lastowski, Harold Werkheiser, 

Gregg Schuster, and Regina Zuvich shall be the only people authorized to sign such 
documents; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ADOPTED AND RESOLVED that Judi Coover, 

Thomas Felver, Gerald Lastowski, Harold Werkheiser, Gregg Schuster, and Regina 
Zuvich be designated as the only authorized signers on all bank accounts and that the 
Treasurer is authorized to take the necessary steps to implement this decision. 
 

RESOLVED at a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the 
Township of Pocono the 8th day of February, 2016. 
 
 
ATTEST:      Township of Pocono 
       Board of Commissioners 
 
 
By:___________________________   By:___________________________ 
Print Name:   Pamela Finkbeiner   Print Name:   Tom Felver 
Title:  Secretary    Title:  President 



TOWNSHIP OF POCONO, MONROE COUNTY, 
PENNSYLVANIA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 
 

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING A TOWNSHIP RESIDENT AS A MEMBER 
OF THE POCONO TOWNSHIP RECREATION COMMITTEE 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners recognizes that the term of Denise 

Herbert on the Recreation Committee ended on December 31, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners desires to reappoint Denise Herbert to 

the Recreation Committee; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ADOPTED AND RESOLVED that Denise 
Herbert is hereby reappointed as a member of the Pocono Township Recreation 
Committee for a five year term commencing on January 1, 2016 and terminating on 
December 31, 2020. 
 

RESOLVED at a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the 
Township of Pocono the 8th day of February, 2016. 
 
 
ATTEST:      Township of Pocono 
       Board of Commissioners 
 
 
By:___________________________   By:___________________________ 
Print Name:   Pamela Finkbeiner   Print Name:   Tom Felver 
Title:  Secretary    Title:  President 



TOWNSHIP OF POCONO, MONROE COUNTY, 
PENNSYLVANIA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 
 

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING A TOWNSHIP RESIDENT AS A MEMBER 
OF THE POCONO TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners recognizes that the term of Dennis 

Purcell on the Planning Commission ended on December 31, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners desires to reappoint Dennis Purcell to 

the Planning Commission; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ADOPTED AND RESOLVED that Dennis 
Purcell is hereby reappointed as a member of the Pocono Township Planning 
Commission for a four year term commencing on January 1, 2016 and terminating on 
December 31, 2019. 
 

RESOLVED at a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the 
Township of Pocono the 8th day of February, 2016. 
 
 
ATTEST:      Township of Pocono 
       Board of Commissioners 
 
 
By:___________________________   By:___________________________ 
Print Name:   Pamela Finkbeiner   Print Name:   Tom Felver 
Title:  Secretary    Title:  President 



TOWNSHIP OF POCONO, MONROE COUNTY, 
PENNSYLVANIA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 
 

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING A TOWNSHIP RESIDENT AS A MEMBER 
OF THE POCONO TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners recognizes that the term of Robert 

DeYoung on the Planning Commission ended on December 31, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners desires to reappoint Robert DeYoung 

to the Planning Commission; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ADOPTED AND RESOLVED that Robert 
DeYoung is hereby reappointed as a member of the Pocono Township Planning 
Commission for a four year term commencing on January 1, 2016 and terminating on 
December 31, 2019. 
 

RESOLVED at a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the 
Township of Pocono the 8th day of February, 2016. 
 
 
ATTEST:      Township of Pocono 
       Board of Commissioners 
 
 
By:___________________________   By:___________________________ 
Print Name:   Pamela Finkbeiner   Print Name:   Tom Felver 
Title:  Secretary    Title:  President 



TOWNSHIP OF POCONO, MONROE COUNTY, 
PENNSYLVANIA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 
 

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING A TOWNSHIP RESIDENT AS AN 
ALTERNATE MEMBER OF THE POCONO TOWNSHIP ZONING HEARING 

BOARD 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners recognizes that the term of Lew 
Ginsberg on the Zoning Hearing Board ended on December 31, 2015; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners desires to reappoint Lew Ginsberg to 

the Zoning Hearing Board; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ADOPTED AND RESOLVED that Lew 
Ginsberg is hereby reappointed as an alternate member of the Pocono Township Zoning 
Hearing Board for a three year term commencing on January 1, 2016 and terminating on 
December 31, 2018. 
 

RESOLVED at a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the 
Township of Pocono the 8th day of February, 2016. 
 
 
ATTEST:      Township of Pocono 
       Board of Commissioners 
 
 
By:___________________________   By:___________________________ 
Print Name:   Pamela Finkbeiner   Print Name:   Tom Felver 
Title:  Secretary    Title:  President 



TOWNSHIP OF POCONO, MONROE COUNTY, 
PENNSYLVANIA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 
 

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING A TOWNSHIP RESIDENT AS A MEMBER 
OF THE POCONO TOWNSHIP CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners recognizes that the term of Rolland 

Cheesman on the Civil Service Commission ended on December 31, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners desires to reappoint Rolland Cheesman 

to the Civil Service Commission; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ADOPTED AND RESOLVED that Rolland 
Cheesman is hereby reappointed as a member of the Pocono Township Civil Service 
Commission for a six year term commencing on January 1, 2016 and terminating on 
December 31, 2021. 
 

RESOLVED at a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the 
Township of Pocono the 8th day of February, 2016. 
 
 
ATTEST:      Township of Pocono 
       Board of Commissioners 
 
 
By:___________________________   By:___________________________ 
Print Name:   Pamela Finkbeiner   Print Name:   Tom Felver 
Title:  Secretary    Title:  President 



TOWNSHIP OF POCONO, MONROE COUNTY, 
PENNSYLVANIA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 
 

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING A TOWNSHIP RESIDENT AS A MEMBER 
OF THE POCONO TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners recognizes that the term of Ronald 

Swink on the Planning Commission ended on December 31, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners desires to reappoint Ronald Swink to 

the Planning Commission; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ADOPTED AND RESOLVED that Ronald 
Swink is hereby reappointed as a member of the Pocono Township Planning Commission 
for a four year term commencing on January 1, 2016 and terminating on December 31, 
2019. 
 

RESOLVED at a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the 
Township of Pocono the 8th day of February, 2016. 
 
 
ATTEST:      Township of Pocono 
       Board of Commissioners 
 
 
By:___________________________   By:___________________________ 
Print Name:   Pamela Finkbeiner   Print Name:   Tom Felver 
Title:  Secretary    Title:  President 



TOWNSHIP OF POCONO, MONROE COUNTY, 
PENNSYLVANIA 

 
RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 
 

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING A TOWNSHIP RESIDENT AS A MEMBER 
OF THE POCONO TOWNSHIP ZONING HEARING BOARD 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners recognizes that the term of Steve 

Chaladoff on the Zoning Hearing Board ended on December 31, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners desires to reappoint Steve Chaladoff to 

the Zoning Hearing Board; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ADOPTED AND RESOLVED that Steve 
Chaladoff is hereby reappointed as a member of the Pocono Township Zoning Hearing 
Board for a three year term commencing on January 1, 2016 and terminating on 
December 31, 2018. 
 

RESOLVED at a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Commissioners of the 
Township of Pocono the 8th day of February, 2016. 
 
 
ATTEST:      Township of Pocono 
       Board of Commissioners 
 
 
By:___________________________   By:___________________________ 
Print Name:   Pamela Finkbeiner   Print Name:   Tom Felver 
Title:  Secretary    Title:  President 


	Agenda
	Minutes
	Bill List
	Northridge Escrow Release
	Sewer Payment Request #1
	Fire Police Appointments
	Traffic Signal Resolution
	Resolution Approving 2016 Meeting Dates
	Resolution Changing Bank Signatories
	Resolution Appointing Denise Herbert to the Recreation Committee
	Resolution Appointing Dennis Purcell to the Planning Commission
	Resolution Appointing Robert DeYoung to the Planning Commission
	Resolution Reappointing Lew Ginsberg to the Zoning Hearing Board
	Resolution Reappointing Rolland Cheesman to the Civil Service Commission
	Resolution Reappointing Ronald Swink to the Planning Commission
	Resolution Reappointing Steve Chaladoff to the Zoning Hearing Board



